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Executive Summary

The report that follows reveals the depth and richness of the agricultural history along
the C&O Canal, and the close interrelationship between the canal and surrounding farms.
Settlement along the fertile bottomlands of the Potomac River preceded construction of the
canal by many years. As a result, the new canal passed through a well established agrarian
landscape; some inhabitants were hostile to the canal due to property damage it would cause,
others embraced it, while a substantial number fought to receive the highest monetary
compensation that they could from the Canal Company. In sum, this research has uncovered
an interesting and significant aspect of the canal's history that had not been addressed
previously. '

Only small, scattered remnants of agricultural land remain today within C&O Canal
National Historical Park, as compared to the 19th century and even to the early 1970s when
land acquisition began in earnest. This acquisition process had a significant impact upon how
the park looks today, as lands along both sides of the canal were severed from their original
farms to form buffer strips. In many, if not most, cases these strips were allowed to
revegetate, obscuring the historical agricultural scene from the towpath and creating a new,
more forested corridor.

The purpose of this report was to provide in-depth historical research on the tracts
presently in the park's agricultural leasing program, to help determine their historical
significance and provide management direction. It also provides a historical overview of
agriculture in western Maryland, so that the individual tracts can be placed within an overall
context. As such the report serves as a first step toward documenting the significant landscape
features that should be preserved on the agricultural tracts. The next step would be to
complete a cultural landscape inventory of these tracts.

Given the substantial decrease in agricultural land along the C&O Canal that has
occurred since the 1970s, with the resulting loss in agrarian character, we recommend that all
of the presently leased tracts remain in the agricultural program. It also is recommended that
the fields at Noland's Ferry recently removed from the program be placed back in it or
maintained as open space through another management technique, such as managed
meadowland. The primary objective is to maintain the open character of the landscape that
once existed along the canal. '

As a result of field surveys conducted as part of this project, we also propose the
following recommendations to improve the appearance and preservation of the agricultural
resources of C&O Canal National Historical Park:

1. Trees along the edges of the fields shouid be cut back on a regular basis to prevent
vegetation from encroaching on the fields and decreasing their size. This is a serious
problem in the park, particularly along the towpath as it obscures the view of the fields
from it.



The fields should be tied to the canal and towpath wherever possible, through limbing
up, vista clearing in bands of heavy vegetation or removing bands of vegetation that
separate the fields from the canal.

Many of the fields along the canal, particularly on the berm side, remain in private
hands. Views of these fields can be "borrowed" through selective vista clearing and
incorporated into the visitor experience.

Interconnections between agriculture and the C&O Canal could be tied into the park's
interpretive program through development of waysides, expansion of park brochure,
and education of park interpretive staff. It is not necessary to re-create past agricultural
practices, but instead show agriculture change through time.

The park should develop an agricultural management plan that balances natural and
cultural resource needs and outlines consistent, parkwide management practices for
agricultural special use permits.

Serious consideration should be giveh to long-term leases through the historic leasing
program for agricultural lands, which should promote better stewardship on the part of
the lessee.



CHAPTER 1: OVERVIEW

INTRODUCTION

The design of the State in fostering this work was not, we apprehend, so much for
the purpose of earning dividends upon the great sums of money embarked in i,
as to develop the resources of the State, to promote the prosperity of the people,
and to furnish transportation to market from the coal mines of Allegany County
and to regulate the price for transportation by competition with the railroad lines.
The Canal in the past has not only done this and so added greatly to the wealth
of the Stare and its taxable property, but it has been a public highway open to all.
It has given occupation to great numbers of people and has itself been an
excellent market for the products of the farming country through which it passes,
most of which Is remote from other markets.

This statement, written 100 years ago, appears in one of the many documents prepared
in the equity case brought against the Chesapeake and Ohio Canal Company by holders of the
company’s stock. As the fate of the canal headed toward receivership, the author’s choice of
words aptly described the role originally intended for the waterway in the economic development
of Western Maryland. What these words also reference is the importance of agriculture, the
economic mainstay of the region. However, the author fails to elaborate on the significant and
influential role of agriculture in the physical development and the day-to-day operation of the
entire canal system. The report that follows has been based on expanding "farming" beyond a -
point of reference to a more complete understanding of how agriculture affected the relationship
between the C&O Canal and the physical histories of the farm sites located along its banks.

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The focus of this report is the development of the rural landscape associated with
agricultural properties within the Chesapeake and Ohio Canal National Historical Park (C&O
Canal NHP) that are leased through special use permits. Analysis and evaluation of the physical
history of these properties will add to the park’s understanding of the cultural resources located
on the individual sites. With this knowledge, appropriate action for the treatment of these lands
will be possible. Through site specific leases, sensitive to the both the cultural and natural
development of the tracts, the remaining open spaces and the historic character of the landscape
will be preserved. An approach that examines the effects of change brought by both humans and

'From "Second Report of Receivers, George S. Brown, et al. v. Chesapeake and
Ohio Canal Company," Egquity 4191 and 4198, Washington County Circuit Court.
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nature can be used to preserve these areas. Preservation along the canal and river corridor will
enhance the visitor’s experience, while the knowledge gained through these efforts will
contribute to and expand the park’s ability to manage for the future.

METHODOLOGY

The Agncultural Land Use Study for the C&O Canal NHP has been divided into four
parts: overview, historical context, individual landscape histories, and assessment. The overview
outlines the relationships between the study sites and the park as a whole. The context section
describes the agricultural history of western Maryland and the Potomac River Valley. The
individual histories describe the existing conditions on the park tracts and the physical changes
that have occurred on these sites over time.

_ Information on the agricultural history and the tracts is derived from the investigation of
both primary and secondary sources. Among these were special collections at the Library of
Congress, the Historical Society of Washington, D.C., the Frederick County Historical Society,
George Washington University and the University of Maryland. Records of the C&O Canal
Company and pertinent maps and drawings located in the National Archives were extensively
examined. Important primary and secondary materials came from the collection of the
Chesapeake and Ohio Canal National Historical Park in Sharpsburg, Maryland. Among these
are individual tract files and the files of the List of Classified Structures (LCS), an architectural
survey, which documents park structures eligible for the National Register, Resources located
in the Washington County Free Library and the Allegany County Public Library have also been
examined. Both Susan Winter Trail, Branch Chief of Cultural Resource Management, and Park
Ranger Dwight Stinson assisted in the valuable research of the land records from the courts of
Washington and Allegany counties. Other assistance came from C&O Canal NHP staff, in
particular: David Trail, Steve Kline, Pat Toops, Bill Spinrad, and Dianne Ingram and from
Maureen D. Joseph of National Capita! Region Systems Support Office.

Unfortunately, very few drawings or photographs have been located that depict or record
the individual sites as they appeared historically. Photodocumentation has therefore been limited
to indirect interpretation from other available canal images. Documentation of existing
conditions involved the adaptation of contemporary land records, planning documents,
archeological reports, maps and site visits to create written site descriptions. Identifiable
landscape features have also been included in the descriptions. This information has been
combined with the extant historical documentation to create individual landscape histories that
reflect the transformation of the sites over time.

The assessment phase of the project involved identifying key landscape components and
analyzing the development of these components. The determination of landscape significance was
based on the evaluation of historic landscape features and patterns. Comparative analysis
between the site descriptions and the significant components was then used to define the type and
concentration of resources remaining on the leased agricultural properties. From this
information, significant cultural landscape resources have been identified that, once protected,
will help maintain and preserve the historic character of the site. Preliminary guidelines for
management of these resources have been outlined in the report for the review and consideration
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of park staff. However, detailed analysis and evaluation, comprehensive guidelines and design
recommendations are beyond the scope of the present project.

CONTEXT OF THE CANAL AND THE PARK

From the banks of this canal of more than 40 year's antiquity there shot up, along
its entire course, a variety of the most beauriful native trees... Beneath these trees,
as far as the eye could penetrate, on either side, were seen in bright luxuriance
growing, every species of plant and wildflower recorded in the Potomac Herbal.*

Throughout most of its length, overhanging limbs and branches, thick upright trunks,
protruding roots, understory growth and leafy canopy make a dense woods along both sides of
the former Chesapeake and Ohio Canal. The abandoned canal is the centerpiece of the C&0O
NHP, which was established by Congress in 1971 and is administered by the National Park
Service (NPS). The route of the old waterway follows the meanders of the Potomac River for
184.5 miles on the north side of the river from Georgetown in Washington, D.C., to
Cumberland, Maryland. Its course passes through cities, suburban neighborhoods, recreational
and natural areas and rural communities located in Georgetown and Montgomery, Frederick,
Washington and Allegany counties. In the less populated jurisdictions, the woods not only
screen views of commercial establishments, highways, homes, camp sites and farms, but vistas
through to the river as well. Occasional openings in the vegetation, however, reveal activity
associated with daily life and glimpses of both the rugged and pastoral character of the Potomac
and its opposite shore in Virginia and West Virginia.

The Canal and all its features comprise the largest and most significant landscape in the
park. This cultural landscape, integral to the transportation and engineering history (1828-1924)
of the canal corridor, includes the canal prism, towpath, berm bank, culverts, adjacent buildings,
bridges, the Paw Paw tunnel, slackwaters, basins and other structural features. Segments of rail
lines and roads such as the former B&O Railroad (now CSX Corporation), the former Western
Maryland Railroad, the old National Turnpike/U.S. Route 40, and Interstate 70 run adjacent to
the canal in certain locations and provide additional context to the history of the transportation
and engineering in the corridor.

The centerpiece of this linear landscape is the remnant of the old canal prism. The
prism, a tree-filled ditch for most of the course, shows the outline of the canal bed and the
embankments of the towpath and the berm sides. The remaining locks and gates, lockhouses,
culverts and aqueducts, many in need of repair and stabilization, help to demonstrate the physical
structure and historic operation of the whole canal system. Adjacent to the prism, vestiges of
other buildings associated with the operation of the canal, such as warehouses, stores and
lockkeepers homesteads, are sometimes discernable through the vegetation. Frequently only
overgrown ruins and crumbling foundations mark the locations of these sites.

? washington Journal, July 7, 1828, describing the old Potomac Canal near
Little Falls on the occasion of the July 4, 1828, ground-breaking ceremony for
the C&0 Canal. ‘

o
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The land beyond the wooded embankments and the adjacent sites is even less visible
through the trees. At times the vegetation screens large-scale contemporary land use, in other
places it conceals varied patierns of use established long before the C&O Canal came into
existence in 1828. Many of these patterns fall within the park’s boundaries and represent
distinct, individual cultural landscapes that have been shaped by physiographic, cultural, political
and corporate determinations.

According to the park’s Resource Management Plan, more than fifty individual landscape
components can be identified along the canal, which are either agricultural, industrial or
commercial in character. Some are active farmsteads, communities, towns or cities as
mentioned above; others are remnant sites, which reveal only traces of their past history. In
several cases these landscapes derive their significance from specific people and events. Other
landscapes such as clusters of buildings associated with the lives of lockkeepers and the
commercial activities of boatmen relate directly to the operation of the canal itself. A third type
are landscapes that developed solely from their proximity to natural resources found in the
Potomac River Valley. These would include historical sites such as those found at the sandstone
quarries near Seneca, among the structural remains of the old iron works on Antietam Creek and
at the former Round Top cement mill. Whatever their significance, type or character, analysis
and evaluation of these individual areas as component, or contributing, landscapes are essential
to understanding the larger cultural landscape of the canal corridor.

In 1994, the cultural and natural resource divisions of the C&0O Canal National Historical

Park determined that the analysis and evaluation of the physical history of selected agricultural -

sites located within the Park was a management priority. The specific properties chosen for
study were farms or parts of agricultural enterprises that are currently or have recently been
leased for cultivation or grazing. They are located at selected points along the berm or towpath
side of the canal, ranging on the east from the Monocacy River in Frederick County to farmland
west of Oldtown in Allegany County.

Funds to acquire adjoining acres and other parcels were set aside when legislation to
establish the Park was enacted in January 197). During the early stages of the park’s
development, planners identified adjacent tracts to incorporate into a buffer zone created on both
sides of the canal, which was designed both to protect and preserve the old waterway. At that
time, approximately 5,000 acres acquired for the C&O Canal NHP (roughly one-third of the
total) were in open areas, fields and agricultural lands. Although the park administration
established the C&O agricultural leasing program to help maintain an appropriate historical
setting within the buffer, the reasoning behind why some tracts were maintained in agriculture
and others were not remains unknown.

By 1990, through land acquisition and with the establishment of scenic easements on
some additional properties, the National Park Service had amassed 14,069 acres of park land.
Today, approximately 1,800 acres of farmland are presently in the leasing program, mostly in
Allegany and Washington counties, although a few are under cultivation in Frederick County.
- The remaining agricultural tracts represent a significant reduction in the original 5,000 acres of
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open space found along the full length of the historic waterway at the time of the park’s
creation.’

During the period of land acquisition, individual properties targeted for purchase by the
federal government were delineated and assigned separate tract numbers. Since that time, the
configuration of all the tracts, including the land administered in the leasing program, has
continued to be determined by the boundaries established when the transfer of property to the
government occurred. All written and verbal references use the tract numbers and the name of
the landowner at the time of the government sale as well. Unfortunately, this system of
nomenclature obscures the earlier physical history of the tracts. Historical documentation shows
that throughout the late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries many properties located along
the canal were subdivided from Jarger landholdings. Frequently these larger properties were
productive farms of several hundred acres. Such enterprises were common in the rich
bottomlands of the Potomac River Valley. When the National Park Service purchased land for
the park, the land acquired often represented further subdivisions of the bottomiand farms. In
many cases, whole properties were segmented, with fertile fields within the park separated from
historic structures and clusters of farm buildings located outside the boundary.

} pata on the acreage in open land is from Susan Winter Trail's analysis
of segment maps found in L. Robert Kimball, Chesapeake and Ohio Canal National
Historical Park, United States Department of the Interior, National Park Service,
Office of Land Acquisition and Water Resources, June 1971, copies located at C&O
Canal Natieonal Historical Park, Sharpsburg, Md.; acres in leased agricultural
sites is taken from park files.







CHAPTER 2:
AGRICULTURE AND THE CANAL IN WESTERN MARYLAND

INTRODUCTION

The history of agriculture in United States is extensive and varies according to region and
place in time. While this report cannot comprehensively outline the history of American
agriculture and its relationship to the development of canal sites, it is essential to understand the
larger historical context of agriculture as it pertains to the Potomac River Valley. In addition
to agricultural development, the more specific account of the gradual industrialization of the
valley and the role of the canal in that growth is another important element in the history of the
farm sites along the C&O. Initial industrial enterprises grew out of and were based on the
overall agricultural growth of the valley. Furthermore, by the second half of the nineteenth
century, the relationship between agriculture and industry had changed to one of parallel, albeit
separate, co-existence, each developing in independent ways.'

The historical narrative is divided into two chapters. The first discusses the role of
agriculture and to a lesser extent that of industry in the development of the valley. The second
focuses on the conditions presently found on the leased agricultural properites, or park tracts,
and on the physical history of the individual farms associated with each of these tracts.

HISTORICAL NARRATIVE
Early History

Native American tribes hunted, fished, cleared fields, quarried and established camp sites
near the Potomac River and its tributaries centuries before the first Europeans explored its
course. Archeological investigation reveals that the earliest Native American habitation in the
upper Potomac River Valley probably dates from 10,000 B.C., when the paleoindian population
existed primarily on large game. By the time of their initial contact with Europeans in the
seventeenth century, various tribes were located along the entire length of the river, from
tidewater to the western mountain ranges, where they lived on a variety of game and cultivated
foodstuffs. Below the Fall Line, at Great Falls, was the territory of the coastal Algonquin
tribes. Tribes with a Siouan based language lived above the Fall Line. Among the Siouan
groups were the those who occupied the rich bottomlands found on the north bank of the
Potomac. As European settlement gradually spread throughout the valiey, the tribes abandoned
their villages and fields, which in turn were cultivated by the new settlers. Later in the

. nineteenth century, the proposed route of the canal traversed many Native American village

' The relationship between agriculture and industry in the valley is discussed
in Frances C. Robb, "Industry in the Potomac River Valley, 1760-1860" (Ph.D.
diss., West Virginia University, 1991).

6
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sites, camp sites and burial mounds. Indeed, canal construction may have disturbed a significant
number of them.? Since the turn of the century, archeological investigation, above-ground
surveys and oral tradition have been used to tentatively identify these early sites, many of which
are on, or near, several of the leased agricultural properties along the canal and the river. For
example, Gerard Fowke, an archeologist writing about his investigations in western Maryland
in 1898, noted that several "small cairns on a hill above the river, on the Cresap farm, at
Oldtown, were hauled away many years ago."’

At present, archeological research and documentation suggests that traces of Native
American occupation are evident on the agricultural sites along the canal not only at Oldtown,
but also at Town Creek, the crossing to Paw Paw, Licking Creek, the former Opequon Creek
crossing, Dam Four, Antietam Creek and at the mouth of the Monocacy River.* Random
surface examination of plowed fields on the leased properties in these areas also confirms the
findings. While individual locations were probably utilized by Native American tribes in
different ways, general patterns of habitation can be determined from sites that have been
excavated.

During the Paleoindian period (9500-8000 B.C.) the Potomac Valley was marked by
coniferous forests and open grassland ranges. By the Early Archaic period (8000-6000 B.C.),
glacial melting had created the Chesapeake Bay, and riverine valleys had formed recognizable
landforms. The Potomac River Valley was forested with deciduous species such as oaks,
chestnut, maples, sassafras, black cherry, hickory and walnut. Grasslands and the number of
clearings in the forest cover increased. Prehistoric groups from the Middle Archaic period were
able to fell trees and open up the woodlands for hunting by using the innovation of the axe. By
the Late Archaic period, Native Americans in the Potomac region lived communally and
cultivated native plants in areas that were located along rivers and streams. Many of these sites
were stil] in use during the Woodland period (about 1000 B.C. to A.D. 1700 in western
Maryland). This relatively recent period is characterized by an increasingly sedentary way of
life where hunting, fishing and gathering and the cultivation of crops, such as corn, squash and
sunflower, were essential to the survival of Native Americans. By the Late Woodland period,
slash and burmn methods were used to clear additional lands for a more diversified agriculture,
which included tobacco and beans.® Exchange of goods through trade networks that followed

! Edward McMillan Larrabee, "A Survey of Historic and Prehistoric Archeological
Sites Along the Chesapeake and Ohio Canal National Monument, 1961-1962" (National
Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior, 1961), 31-33.

} Gerard Fowke cited in John F. Pousson, Archeclogical Excavations at the Moore
Village Site, Chesapeake & Ohio Canal National Historical Park, Allegany County,
Maryland {National Park Service, United States Department of the Interior,
National Park Service, 1983), 1l3.

‘For a list of probable Native American sites above the fall line, see
Larrabee, "Survey," 18-47.

 Ww. Ralph Singleton, "Agricultural Plants," in Darwin P. Kelsy, ed., Farming
the New Nation (Washington, D.C.: The Agricultural History Society, 1972), 73,
states that "there were literally thousands of acres of corn growing in Virginia
alone . . . in 1607." MNative Americans may also have created or adapted existing
meadows for hunting game. On an expedition to the area near the south branch of




valleys and watercourses also developed during this period. By the late Woodland phase, a
Native American culture, referred to as the Monongahela culture, was evident in the upper
Potomac River Valley.

On the bottomlands lying between the confluence of the north and south branches of the
Potomac and the river crossing at Oldtown, several Native American occupations have been
identified.® Characteristic dwellings at of one of these, known as Moore Village (Tract #51-
136), are common to other Monongahela village sites, where the population may have been as
great as 100. Moore Village included houses constructed of wattle and daub on posts and
arranged within an oval-shaped and palisaded enclosure. Evidence of refuse ditches and storage
pits for maize and other food products were also present the Moore site. Excavations of artifacts
from post molds, pits and trench segments reveal that the earliest date for Monogahela type
occupation of the Moore Village falls within A.D.1400-1470. The quantity and quality of
artifacts also suggests that over time the village and other nearby sites became permanent
settlements or were regularly reoccupied after fields been allowed to remain fallow.” One
indication of this type of land use is the names chosen by Europeans at the time of early
setttement to designate the open areas along the north branch of the Potomac. On a map
published in 1736, two areas were called "Shawno Indian Fields deserted” (Figure 2.1). One
of these lay directly above the confluence of the north and south branches, while the other was
found much farther upriver, several miles southwest of present-day Cumberland, Maryland. Two
others were named "Old Field." One "old field" was located on the southern shore of the north
branch, in what is now West Virginia, opposite the Oldtown crossing. A second "old field"
could be found to the north, just below Eagle Mountain on the Maryland side of the Potomac.
All four designations probably referred to abandoned sites used by groups of Shawnee just prior
to the establishment of European outposts in the area (ca. 1730). One Shawnee chief, King
Opessa, is said to have established a village at the confluence as late as 1729. Oldtown derives
its name from references to "old fields" and King Opessa’s town.®?

Near the junction of the Monocacy River with the Potomac, a fort, with dwellings on
both side of the enclosure for some 300 occupants, was constructed by the Piscataway tribe on
Conoy Island during the 1690s. The Piscataways had migrated to the area in search of areas
protected from the more aggressive Iroquois and Susquehannock tribes and away from colonial

the Potomac River, George Washington referred to an "0ld Field" and a "Wwild
Meadow" where he was surveying for Lord Fairfax; see John C., Fitzpatrick, ed.,
The Diaries of George Washington, 1748-1799 (New York: Klause Reprint, 1971), 1
and 11.

¢ See Larrabee, "Survey," 45-46.
T pousson, Moore Village, 149-153.

! Benjamin Winslow, A plan of the upper Part of the Potomac River called
Cohongorooto Surveyed in the vear 1736, copy on file Geography and Map Division,

Library of Congress; and Russel)l Handsman, "A Cultural resource Management Study
of the Oldtown, Maryland Locality” (C&0 Canal NHP manuscript, March 1977). Also
see John Warner, The Courses of the Rivers Rappahanock and Potomac in Virginia

as_surveved according to order in the years 1736 and 1737, copy on file Geography
and Map Division, Library of Congress.
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Figure 2.1 1736 Winslow Map of the upper end of the Potomac Rive
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European settlements in the Maryland tidewater. On Conoy, Piscataways lived in longhouses
and cultivated crops, such as “fine Indian corn” and caught large quantities of fish from the
river.” However, by 1704 they abandoned their island community after a smallpox epidemic
eliminated a significant percentage of the tribe. The area was soon reinhabited by a French
trader, Martin Chartier, who established a trading post along the shores of the Monocacy River
at the confluence, and by a smaller group of Piscataways, who established their village on the
Potomac shoreline just above the Monocacy. This combined settlement served as an entry for
the fertile valleys that lay to the west, which early visitors to the area noted as "an exceedingly
broad extent of country," Across the Potomac in Virginia also lay "choice land, abounding in
and full of sugar trees. These trees are very handsome and are as tall as oaks. They grow only
on rich soil.*!'® No European settlement other than Chartier’s was located above the fall line,
and those below were clustered along the river between present-day Rock Creek and the
Anacostia River.

Plowing and tilling by farmers over the last two hundred years and long-term surface
collecting by scavengers at the former Chartier site have uncovered “Indian pottery, old glass
and stone points.""' Some of these artifacts probably remain from the Tuscarora tribe, which
occupied the north side of the Monocacy by 1720, as well as from the earlier time of Chartier’s
trading post. The site “in this fork [where] Mr. Charles Carol laid out his great tract” was
known as the "Tuskarora Indian Town" as late as 1721."2 The fields between Monocacy River
and Tuscarora Creek have been cultivated from the time of the Piscataway -and Tuscarora
occupations, through Charles Carroll’s ownership, down to the present day (Tracts .#12-108,
#13-100 and #13-101). Thus, its agricultural history spans the chronological range of the study

* area that is the subject of this report.

The data from the archeological investigations conducted on the Moore Village site
establishes a firm foundation for our understanding of early agricultural settlement in the
Potomac River Valley. For the purposes of this report, the Moore Village site represents the
only leased agricultural tract (Tract #51-136) within the C&O NHP that has been investigated
according to accepted archeological practices. From the research at Moore, from superficial
investigations at other locations such as the Chick Farm, and from documentary sources and oral
tradition, the agricultural character of early occupations adjacent to the canal can be inferred and

* See item H. from the map key provided by Baron Christophe Von Gaffenried,
copy of map Project de L°Establishment..., 1712 and map key on file, Geography
and Map Division, Library of Congress.

© Baron Christoph von Gaffenfried, in V.H. Todd and J. Goebels, eds., Christoph
von Gaffenfried’'s Account cf the Founding of New Bern (Spartanburg, S.C.: The
Reprint Company, 1973), 247, cited in Paul Thibault, "Late 17th and Early 18th
Century Pecple at the Confluence of the Monocacy and the Potomac Rivers; and
Their Maps" (George Washington University manuscript, 1994). See also Gaffenfried
map key item K., Geography and Map Division, Library of Congress.

" Thibault, "People at the Confluence of the Monocacy and Potomac River,” 27.
2 gee "Powtowmeck above ye Inhabitants,® Philemon Lloyd‘s sketch map of 1721,

reproduced in both Thibault, "People at the Confluence of the Monocacy and the
Potomac Rivers,® and in Maryland Historical Magazine 30 (March 1935): 1-]11.
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the connection between the Native American use of the site and the subsequent utilization of the
same rich bottomland for the earliest European settlements in Western Maryland demonstrated.

Colonial Settlement Patterns

While the colonial history of western Maryland is frequently characterized by the
adventures of Thomas Cresap, the travels of George Washington, the establishment of the Ohio
Company in 1748, the defeat of General Braddock and the "French and Indian War," this
history, with the exception of the tracts at Oldtown, is tangential to the history of the leased
properties within present-day C&O0 Canal NHP."* The significance of the overall agricultural
history of the region has more direct bearing on the individual sttes, but in many respects, the
development of agriculture along the river cannot be site specific or separated from the overall
history of agriculture in the different western counties. Agriculture was the economic mainstay
of Western Maryland until the middle of the nineteenth century, and its value to the region is
underscored by the earliest efforts to develop the Potomac River and its waterpower with
industry and transportation networks that would support farm production. Once the construction,
initial operation and subsequent expansion of the three major transportation systems, the National
Road, the Chesapeake and Ohio Canal and the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad, were complete, the
relationship of agriculture and its role in the region’s economy changed considerabty.™

By the 1730s Pennsylvanian Germans and Scotch-Irish began to move into the fertile
valleys running from north to south along the Monocacy River, on both sides of the Catoctin
Mountains and in the foothills of the Alleghenies. The steady stream of settlers soon became
a sweeping migration through what is now called the Great Valley in Maryland to the
Shenandoah Valley in Virginia. Their increasing number brought on a wave of speculation as
landowners such as Daniel Dulaney, Maryland’s attorney general, and frontiersman Thomas
Cresap, surveyor and agent for Lord Baltimore’s western Maryland territory, leased or sold land
to the first settlers. Settlers’ homesteads were established at points along the river where creeks
" and streams flowed into the Potomac and where river crossings were possible. Some of these
homesteads or small farms were located near sites that had been occupied previously by Native
Americans, and later by frontier traders.’® The colonials in tum adapted the open areas
abandoned by their predecessors for their own agricultural needs.

Around 1735, Charles Anderson resided on the most western frontier, near the "Shawnee

" The significance of these individuals and events is described in J. Thomas
Scharf, History of Western Marvland (Baltimore: Regional Publishing Company,
19%68; originally printed 1882). The role of Thomas Cresap directly relates to the
history of Tract #51-136 and is discussed in the individual tract history.

“ Phe significance of the role of agriculture in the growth of the Potomac
River Valley is discussed at length in Robb, "Industry.”

* Like Martin Chartier on the Monocacy, Mary Vernon Mish, "Springfield of Farm
of Conococheague,” Maryland Historical Magazine &7 (1952), 315-316, states that
Philemon Lloyd’s 1721 map notes a "Indian trader’s habitacon™ at the mouth of the
Conococheague Creek, suggesting that it is a probable site of a prev;ous native
American settlement.
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Indian Fields deserted," above the junction of the north and south branches of the Potomac
River.'* Documentation suggests that Anderson lived on Twenty Shilling Creek, or present-day
Mill Run, where he may have erected a saw mill or small custom mill to process grain and corn.
The route of a Native American "Old Trail"” crossed the north branch just below Anderson’s and
linked his establishment with that of John Nicholas on the opposite shore in Virginia. According
to Benjamin Winslow's map of 1736 (Figure 2.1), Anderson and Nicholas’s nearest neighbors
had gathered in four homesteads some 40 miles downriver near Little Tonoloway Creek and
above the area that would become Hancock, Maryland." Here another north/south river
crossing would also be established, although not as early as 1736.

Between Anderson’s residence and the four homesteads at Little Tonoloway, rose the first
high ridges of the Allegheny mountain range, which caused the meanders of the north branch
of the Potomac. Winslow indicated the names of the larger streams intersecting with the river,
among them Town Creek, the Little Cacapon in Virginia, Fifteen Mile and Sideling Hill Creeks.
While the names for three of these waterways seem to be based on topographical or Native
American descriptions, the Town Creek name is an apparent misnomer, since no "town" is

shown on the map. However, the large rounded plain created by an oxbow in the course of

Town Creek as it flows toward the Potomac may have been the site for an earlier Native
American settlement or Indian town, similar to the Moore Village located at Oldtown.'* Some
time after Winslow's survey, a millseat was established on the creek.

In 1736 Charles Polk was one of the four settlers residing near Little Tonoloway Creek.
In 1748 George Washington, exploring the upper Potomac as a member of a surveying party for
Lord Fairfax, landowner of the vast Northern Neck proprietary in Virginia, forded the river at
"Warm Springs" (Bath or Berkley Springs, West Virginia) to quarter his party’s horses for the
night at Polk’s in Maryland, where there was ample pasturage. Returning to rest on the Virginia
shore that night, Washington’s group canoed back across the river [to Polk’s] the next day and
then traveled 40 miles to Oldtown on “"the worst Road that was ever trod by Man or Beast.”
This rough road had not been indicated on Winslow’s earlier survey, Yet the route may have
developed from an informal trail along the river, connecting abandoned Native American sites
to a more defined, yet crude, frontier road linking the various river crossings. The road along
the river was not officially established until 1758. At Oldtown, the young Washington
encountered both the legendary Thomas Cresap and "Indians,” an event that he vividly describes

*The discussion that follows is based on analysis of Winslow, "Upper part
of the Potomac River...," 1736 survey map, cited above. Proper names noted by
Winslow are difficult ¢to determine. These individuals may be tenants or
landowners; verification of their status and correct surname through colonial
records is beyond the scope of this report. Coordination of sites marked cn
Winslow’s survey with present-day C&0 Canal NHP properties may be possible
through computerized scanning.

" Winslow labels the four farmsteads as those belonging to "Chas. Poke," "Capt.
John," “Thos. Hargass," and "Thos. Wiggon."

¥ gee Larrabee, "Survey" for list of potential native American sites for
archeological investigation; he notes that the "Warrior‘s Path" cressed the
Potomac at the mouth of Big Run just downstream from Town Creek.

4 s Fr
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in his diary."

Along the long stretch of river between Tonoloway Creek and the downstream bend
above present-day Prather’s Neck, spread three indi